MINUTES REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING THE PORT OF PORTLAND October 12, 2022

Following due notice to the public, the regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Portland was held virtually at 9:30 a.m. The meeting was streamed live on the Port's website and YouTube channel.

An audio recording was made of these proceedings. The recording, and the full Commission agenda, is available on the Port's website: www.portofportland.com. The following written minutes constitute a summary of the proceedings.

QUORUM

Commissioners present were Mike Alexander, Vice President, presiding; Katherine Lam; Richelle Luther; Meg Niemi; Ketan Sampat and Stuart Strader. Also present were Curtis Robinhold, Executive Director, and participating staff members.

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to grant a leave of absence to Commissioners Coba, Cuprill-Comas and O'Hollaren who were out of town. Commissioner Sampat moved to grant the leave of absence. Commissioner Luther seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi and Sampat voted in favor of the motion. Commissioner Strader was not present for the vote.

MINUTES

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Commission Meeting of September 14, 2022. Commissioner Luther moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Lam seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi and Sampat voted in favor of the motion. Commissioner Strader was not present for the vote.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Curtis Robinhold addressed the Commission and audience; his comments covered the following general topics:

- Thanked the Commission for their willingness to meet virtually this month to accommodate a
 visit by the head of the Economic Development Administration (EDA), Assistant Secretary
 Alejandra Castillo, and our two U.S. Senators, Ron Wyden and Jeff Merkley, in our
 Commission room. They were here to talk about the next steps and regional impact in
 EDA's awarding our Mass Timber Coalition \$41.4 million to grow the mass timber industry
 and help increase statewide housing production;
- Welcomed the new employees who are following along on the Port's YouTube channel;
- Acknowledged the monthly safety champions and asked Stan Watters for this month's safety message; and

Noted that last week the PDX Next team successfully installed the last of the giant roof modules over the existing terminal. He said with this milestone, and a lot of hard work and late nights over the past six weeks, the team has completed the most challenging and riskiest parts of the project; truly an incredible feat of engineering and construction and one that has never been done before. He said we have prioritized safety and is very proud of the team for completing this milestone safely. He noted that building a mass timber structure this large out of sustainably sourced wood has also never been done before.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the Executive Director's Report. Commissioner Niemi moved to approve the Executive Director's Report. Commissioner Lam seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi and Sampat voted in favor of the motion. Commissioner Strader was not present for the vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Alexey and Elena Byrgazov, residents of the Ashcreek neighborhood in Portland, addressed the Commission regarding the increased aircraft activity and noise over their home.

CONSENT ITEM

No presentation was made for the following agenda item, which was brought before the Commission as the Consent Agenda.

Agenda Item No. 1

EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT CONTRACT – DREDGE OREGON PIPE PROCUREMENT 2022 – NAVIGATION DIVISION

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to award an equipment procurement contract for the fabrication and delivery of steel dredge discharge pipe to Willamette Technical Fabricators, LLC, in accordance with its bid; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the reading of the title of the Consent Agenda by Commissioner Alexander, Commissioner Luther moved to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Niemi seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

ACTION ITEMS

Agenda Item No. 2

SECOND READING AND ENACTMENT – PORT OF PORTLAND ORDINANCE NO. 478-R, AMENDING PORT OF PORTLAND ORDINANCE NO. 448 REGARDING CUSTOMER FACILITY CHARGES ON RENTAL CAR TRANSACTIONS – PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

This agenda item requested a second reading and enactment of proposed Port of Portland (Port) Ordinance No. 478-R, which amends Port Ordinance No. 448 regarding customer facility charges on rental car transactions at Portland International Airport.

Steve Koester presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That proposed Port of Portland Ordinance No. 478-R be given a second reading by title only; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That proposed Port of Portland Ordinance No. 478-R, in the form presented to the Commission, be enacted by a roll call vote; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the President of the Port of Portland Board of Commissioners or their designee is authorized to execute enacted Port of Portland Ordinance No. 478-R on behalf of the Port of Portland in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation, there was a comment from Commissioner Luther.

Steve Koester read Ordinance No. 478-R by title only.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Strader moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Luther seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

Agenda Item No. 3

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AMENDMENT – TERMINAL CORE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT – PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

This agenda item requested approval to amend the existing personal services contract with ZGF Architects LLP, for the Terminal Core Redevelopment project at Portland International Airport in the amount of \$11,660,530 to provide primarily for construction administration services until March 2023.

George Seaman presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to amend the existing personal services contract with ZGF Architects LLP for the Terminal Core Redevelopment project at Portland International Airport, consistent with the terms presented to the Commission; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation there was a question and comment from the Commission.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Lam moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Luther seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

Agenda Item No. 4

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT - BERTH 503 REHABILITATION - TERMINAL 5

This agenda item requested approval to award a public improvement contract for construction services to Stellar J Corporation for the Berth 503 Rehabilitation project at Terminal 5 in the amount of \$5,528,070.

Eric Forsyth presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to award a public improvement contract for construction services for the Berth 503 Rehabilitation project at Terminal 5 to Stellar J Corporation, in accordance with its bid; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation there were questions from the Commission.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Luther moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Sampat seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

Agenda Item No. 5

ON-CALL GEOTECHNICAL SERVICES CONTRACTS FOR VARIOUS PORT OF PORTLAND FACILITIES

This agenda item requested approval of four personal services contracts to provide on-call geotechnical services on an as-needed basis for a term of five years. The following firms were selected through a competitive request for proposals process:

- GRI
- Shannon & Wilson, Inc.
- GeoDesign dba NV5
- Cornforth Consultants

Chris Edwards presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to award four personal services contracts for on-call geotechnical services to the following firms: GRI; Shannon & Wilson, Inc.; GeoDesign dba NV5; and Cornforth Consultants, consistent with the terms presented to the Commission; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation there was a comment from Commissioner Luther.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Sampat moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Luther seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

Agenda Item No. 6

EQUIPMENT PROCUREMENT CONTRACT AND RELATED FINANCING ARRANGEMENT – PIPE BARGE PROCUREMENT – NAVIGATION DIVISION

This agenda item requested approval to award an equipment procurement contract to Diversified Marine, Inc., to construct a pipe barge to support the Port of Portland's Navigation Division dredging work, in the amount of \$3,873,000. This item also requests approval to enter into a financing arrangement with Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, to fund the full project budget including design and construction costs as well as the Port's administrative costs in the amount of \$4,533,000.

Ryan Milkowski presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to award an equipment procurement contract to construct a pipe barge to support the Port of Portland's Navigation Division dredging work to Diversified Marine, Inc., consistent with the terms presented to the Commission; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That approval is given to execute and deliver the agreements and other documents necessary or desirable to obtain the financing described above from Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, including without limitation an additional Schedule of Property under the existing Master Installment Purchase Agreement, an assignment of vessel insurance policies, a certificate of the Port as to no liens, and a UCC financing statement; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation there was a question and comment from the Commission.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Luther moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Sampat seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion. Commissioner Niemi was not present for the vote.

Agenda Item No. 7

READOPTION OF COMMISSION POLICY NO. 6.1.2, INVESTMENTS

This agenda item requested readoption of Port of Portland Commission Policy No. 6.1.2, *Investments*, revised as of October 12, 2022.

Travis George presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That Port of Portland Commission Policy No. 6.1.2, *Investments*, is hereby readopted and dated October 12, 2022; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a copy of the Commission Investments Policy No. 6.1.2, *Investments*, shall be attached to the minutes of this meeting.

Following the presentation there was a comment from Commissioner Sampat.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Niemi moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Luther seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

Agenda Item No.8

EXTENSION OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT – PORT OF PORTLAND POLICE EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION

This agenda item requested approval of a one-year collective bargaining agreement extension between the Port of Portland (Port) and the Port of Portland Police Employees Association, representing the Port's police officers, sergeants, communications dispatchers, and police clerks.

Blaise Lamphier presented the Executive Director's recommendations as follows:

BE IT RESOLVED, That approval is given to enter in a collective bargaining agreement with the Port of Portland Police Employees Association for a one-year extension, beginning July 1, 2022, setting forth wages, fringe benefits and working conditions, consistent with the terms presented to the Port of Portland Commission; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Executive Director or his designee is authorized to execute the necessary documents on behalf of the Port of Portland Commission in a form approved by counsel.

Following the presentation there were questions from the Commission.

Commissioner Alexander called for a motion to approve the recommendations. Commissioner Strader moved that the recommendations be approved. Commissioner Sampat seconded the motion, which was put to a roll call vote. Commissioners Alexander, Lam, Luther, Niemi, Sampat and Strader voted in favor of the motion.

President	
Assistant Secretary	
Date Signed	

The meeting adjourned at 10:49 a.m.

PORT OF PORTLAND COMMISSION POLICY

INVESTMENTS Policy No. 6.1.2

Readopted Commission meeting of October 12, 2022

I. PURPOSE

This Investment Policy ("Policy") defines the parameters within which funds are to be invested by the Port of Portland ("Port"). This Policy also formalizes the framework, pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 294.135, for the Port's investment activities to ensure effective and judicious management of funds within the scope of this Policy. These guidelines are intended to be broad enough to allow designated investment staff to function properly within the parameters of responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the investment assets.

II. GOVERNING AUTHORITY

The Port's investment program shall be operated in conformance with the ORS and applicable federal laws. Specifically, this investment policy is written in conformance with ORS 294.035; 294.040; 294.052; 294.135; 294.145; and 294.810. All funds within the scope of this Policy are subject to regulations established by the State of Oregon. Any revisions or extensions of these sections of the ORS shall be assumed to be part of this Policy immediately upon being enacted.

III. SCOPE

This Policy applies to activities of the Port with regard to investing the financial assets of operating funds, non-operating funds, capital funds, and bond proceeds. Some funds managed by the Port are also guided by other documents, including bond documents, and all funds are subject to Oregon laws. Any investment held prior to the adoption of this Policy shall be exempted from the requirements of this Policy. At maturity or liquidation, such monies shall be reinvested as provided by this Policy

IV. OBJECTIVES

The primary objectives, in priority order, of the Port's investment activities shall be:

1. Preservation of Invested Capital

The primary objective of the Port's investment program is preservation of capital. Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The goal is to mitigate credit risk and interest rate risk (as such terms are defined in Appendix I of this Policy).

2. Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all reasonably anticipated cash flow requirements.

3. Return

The investment portfolio shall be managed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into consideration the safety and liquidity needs of the portfolio. Investment securities may be purchased with the intention to hold until maturity with the purpose of mitigating interest rate risk. Sale of securities prior to maturity is permitted where it serves the Port's investment objectives.

4. Sustainable Investing

The Port encourages investments in entities that support community well-being through safe and environmentally sound practices, fair labor practices, and equality of rights regardless of sex, race, age, disability, or sexual orientation. The Port's portfolio shall not include investment in companies in fossil fuel extraction, refining, and distribution industries or subindustries, as classified by a third-party source.

V. STANDARDS OF CARE

1. Prudence

The standard of prudence to be used by Investment Officers (as defined in the attached Appendix I) shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing the Port's investment portfolio. The "prudent person" standard states:

"Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived."

Investment Officers acting in accordance with written procedures and administering this Policy in accordance with its terms shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk, market price changes, and any losses that might occur in the Port's investment portfolio.

2. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

Investment Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal activity that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions. Investment Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. Disclosure shall be made to the Port Commission. They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio. Investment Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the Port. Investment Officers and Port employees shall, at all times, comply with the State of Oregon Government Standards and Practices code of ethics set forth in ORS Chapter 244.

3. Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities

a) Governing Body

The Port Commission will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for invested funds. The governing body will receive reports, pursuant to, and with sufficient detail to comply with ORS 294.155.

b) <u>Delegation of Authority</u>

Authority to manage investments within the scope of this Policy and operate the investment program in accordance with established written procedures and internal controls is granted to Investment Officers. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this Policy.

c) Investment Committee

The Port may establish an investment committee to provide guidance to the Investment Officer(s) and monitor Policy compliance.

d) Investment Consultant

The Port may engage the services of one or more external investment consultants to assist in the management of the Port 's investment portfolio in a manner consistent with this Policy. This assistance may be in the form of an active investment manager with full discretion to make investment decisions. Conversely, it may be in the form of an investment adviser without such discretion. Any of these services may be conducted in relation to the entire investment portfolio or only to discrete portions of the portfolio. If the Port hires an investment consultant to provide full discretionary investment management services, the manager is authorized to transact with its direct dealer relationships on behalf of the Port.

VI. TRANSACTION COUNTERPARTIES, INVESTMENT ADVISORS, AND DEPOSITORIES

1. Broker/Dealers

The Investment Officers shall determine which broker/dealer firms and registered representatives are authorized for the purposes of investing funds within the scope of this Policy. A list will be maintained of approved broker/dealer firms and affiliated registered representatives.

The Port may purchase or sell securities subject to the provisions of this Policy through any of the following:

- Banks, savings and loans, and mutual savings banks authorized to do business in Oregon (not simply loan production offices).
- Primary security dealers as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and Oregon secondary dealers.
- Primary agency selling group members as designated by the U.S. agency involved.

Approved broker/dealers must meet the Oregon State Treasury's recommended guidelines for appropriate registration, licenses, and certifications prior to conducting investment transactions with the Port. The Investment Officer may impose more stringent criteria.

An annual review of all authorized broker/dealers and their respective authorized registered representatives will be conducted by an Investment Officer. Factors to consider will include:

- Pending investigations by securities regulators
- Significant changes in net capital
- Pending customer arbitration cases
- Regulatory enforcement actions

2. Investment Consultants

The following items are required for all approved investment consultants:

- a) The investment consultant firm must be registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) or licensed by the state of Oregon (note: investment consultant firms with assets under management of > \$100 million must be registered with the SEC, otherwise the firm must be licensed by the state of Oregon).
- b) Certification, by all of the consultant representatives conducting investment transactions on behalf of the investment consultant firm, of having read, understood and agreed to comply with this Policy.

An annual review of all authorized investment consultants will be conducted by the Investment Officer, to determine continued eligibility within the portfolio guidelines. Factors to consider will include:

- Pending investigations by securities regulators
- Significant changes in net capital
- Pending customer arbitration cases
- Regulatory enforcement actions

3. Depositories

Financial institutions utilized as depositories must be qualified Oregon Depositories pursuant to ORS Chapter 295.

4. Competitive Transactions

- a) Investment Officers shall obtain and document competitive bid information on all investments purchased or sold in the secondary market. Competitive bids or offers should be obtained, when possible, from at least three separate brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally-recognized trading platform.
- b) In the instance of a security for which there is no readily-available competitive bid or offering on the same specific issue, then the Investment Officer shall document quotations for comparable or alternative securities.
- c) When purchasing original-issue instrumentality securities, no competitive offerings will be required as all dealers in the selling group offer those securities at the same original issue price. However, the Investment Officer is encouraged to document quotations on comparable securities.
- d) If an investment consultant provides investment management services, the consultant must use competitive pricing execution on each transaction.

VII. ADMINISTRATION AND OPERATIONS

1. Delivery vs. Payment and Third-Party Safekeeping

All trades of marketable securities will be executed (cleared and settled) by delivery vs. payment (DVP). Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by the Port. All securities will be evidenced by safekeeping receipts in the name of the Port. Securities acquired through repurchase agreements with the Port's custodian bank(s) may be held by the custodian bank(s). In all cases, payment shall be made only upon delivery.

2. Internal Controls

In accordance with Port Administrative Policy No. 7.2.5, *Internal Accounting Control*, ultimate responsibility lies with the Chief Financial Officer to establish and maintain an adequate internal control structure designed to reasonably assure that investable funds are invested within the parameters of this Policy and protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The established control structure shall be reviewed and updated periodically by one or more Investment Officers. However, specifics for the internal controls shall be documented in writing. Conformance to internal controls as well as State law will be audited periodically by either an internal or external auditor. Such audit will include tests deemed appropriate by the auditor.

VIII. SUITABLE AND AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS

1. Investment Types

The Port may invest its funds in securities or investments subject to ORS 294.035, 294.040, and 294.810, with the following restrictions:

a) <u>U.S. Treasury and Government Agency Obligations</u>

Lawfully issued general obligations of the United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government and obligations whose payment is guaranteed by the United States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government.

b) Municipal Debt

Lawfully-issued debt obligations of the agencies and instrumentalities of the State of Oregon and its political subdivisions that have a long-term rating of A- or an equivalent rating or better or are rated on the settlement date in the highest category without any refinement or gradation for short-term municipal debt by a nationally-recognized statistical rating organization.

Lawfully-issued debt obligations of the States of California, Idaho and Washington and political subdivisions of those states if the obligations have a long-term rating of AA- or an equivalent rating or better or are rated on the settlement date in the highest category for short-term municipal debt by a nationally-recognized statistical rating organization.

No more than 5 percent of the Port's investment portfolio shall be invested in any single municipal bond issuing authority other than the State of Oregon or one of its agencies. However, to the extent that any reserve or construction funds exist and are also subject to yield restrictions by U.S. Treasury regulations or code, such funds may be invested in municipal bonds and no more than 20 percent of such funds shall be placed with any single issuing authority other than the State of Oregon or one of its agencies.

Per ORS 294.040, permitted bonds may be purchased only if there has been no default in payment of either the principal of or the interest on the obligations of the issuing county, port, school district or city, for a period of five years next preceding the date of the investment.

c) Qualified Institution Time Deposits/Savings Accounts/Certificates of Deposit

Bank demand deposits in qualified depository institutions are considered cash and not investments and are therefore outside the scope and restrictions of this Policy.

Pursuant to ORS 294.035(3)(d), time deposit open accounts, certificates of deposit and savings accounts in insured institutions as defined in ORS 706.008, in credit unions as defined in ORS 723.006 or in federal credit unions, if the institution or credit union maintains a head office or a branch in the State of Oregon, are considered investments and within the scope of this Policy.

Time certificates of deposit with any issuer will not exceed 30 percent of the net capital of such issuer, based on their most currently published financial report.

All bank demand deposits and time deposits shall be held in qualified Oregon depositories in accordance with ORS Chapter 295.

d) Bankers' Acceptances

Banker's acceptances, if they are:

- (i) Guaranteed by, and carried on the books of, a qualified financial institution;
- (ii) Eligible for discount by the Federal Reserve System; and
- (iii) Issued by a qualified financial institution whose short-term letter of credit rating is rated in the highest category without any refinement or gradation by one or more nationally-recognized statistical rating organizations.

For purposes of this subsection, "qualified financial institution" means:

- (i) A financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon; or
- (ii) A financial institution that is wholly owned by a financial holding company or a bank holding company that owns a financial institution that is located and licensed to do banking business in the State of Oregon.

An Investment Officer shall not permit more than 25 percent of the moneys of the Port that are available for investment, as determined on the settlement date, to be invested in banker's acceptances of any qualified financial institution. Banker's acceptances guaranteed by a qualified financial institution shall not exceed 30 percent of the net capital of such institution, based on their most currently published financial report.

e) <u>Corporate Indebtedness</u>

Corporate indebtedness subject to a valid registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission or issued under the authority of Section 3(a)(2) or 3(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Corporate indebtedness described in this subsection does not include banker's acceptances. The corporate indebtedness must be issued by a commercial, industrial or utility business enterprise, or by or on behalf of a financial institution, including a holding company owning a majority interest in a qualified financial institution.

Corporate indebtedness must be rated on the settlement date P-1 or Aa3 or better by Moody's Investors Service or A-1 or AA- or better by S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating by any nationally-recognized statistical rating organization.

Notwithstanding the prior paragraph, the corporate indebtedness must be rated on the settlement date P-2 or A3 or better by Moody's Investors Service or A-2 or A or better by S&P Global Ratings and Fitch Ratings or an equivalent rating by any nationally-recognized statistical rating organization when the corporate indebtedness is:

- (i) Issued by a business enterprise that has its headquarters in Oregon, employs more than 50 percent of its permanent workforce in Oregon or has more than 50 percent of its tangible assets in Oregon; or
- (ii) Issued by a holding company owning not less than a majority interest in a qualified financial institution, as defined in subsection **Error! Reference source not found.** above, located and licensed to do banking business in Oregon or by a holding company owning not less than a majority interest in a business enterprise described in subsection (i) immediately above.

An Investment Officer may not permit more than 35 percent of the moneys of the Port that are available for investment, as determined on the settlement date, to be invested in corporate indebtedness, and may not permit more than five percent of the moneys of the Port that are available for investment to be invested in corporate indebtedness of any single corporate entity and its affiliates or subsidiaries.

f) Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase agreements whereby the Investment Officer purchases securities from a financial institution or securities dealer subject to an agreement by the seller to repurchase the securities. The repurchase agreement must be in writing and executed before the initial purchase of the securities that are the subject of the repurchase agreement. Only securities described in Section Error! Reference source not found.(Error! Reference source not found.)(Error! Reference source not found.) above may be used in conjunction with a repurchase agreement and such securities shall have a maturity of not longer than three years. The price paid by the Investment Officer for such securities may not exceed amounts or

percentages prescribed by written policy of the Oregon Investment Council or the Oregon Short Term Fund Board.

Repurchase agreements shall not exceed a term of 30 days. Collateral provided to the Port under a repurchase agreement shall be deposited with the Port's custodian bank(s), marked to the market daily and maintained at a minimum level in conformance with ORS 294.035 (3)(j).

Repurchase agreements may be entered into with authorized dealers or institutions when a master repurchase agreement or specific written contract governs the transaction. In no case will the total of such agreements with any firm exceed 10 percent of their equity (based on their most recently published financial report).

g) Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF)

Investment in the OSTF is subject to the limit stated in ORS 294.810.

2. Percentage of Investments and Credit Ratings

The portfolio will be diversified so that the par value for each of the security types shown in the following table shall not exceed the maximum position indicated as a percentage of the portfolio at time of purchase:

Security Type	Maximum % Holdings	Minimum Rating
U.S. Treasury Obligations	100%	-
U.S. Agency Obligations (GSE)	100%	_
Per issuer	30%	
Corporate Indebtedness (subject to ORS 294.035 (i))	35%	AA- or equivalent A or equivalent if the issuer meets the
Per issuer	5%	requirements of ORS 294.035(3)(i)(C)(i)(ii)
Time Certificates of Deposit (TCD) (subject to ORS 294.035 (d)	30%	1
Per institution	5%	
Bankers Acceptances (subject to ORS 294.035(h))	25%	A-1+ or equivalent
Per issuer	5%	•
Repurchase Agreements Under 30 days (subject or ORS 294.035 (j))	50%	
	15%	
Municipal Debt Obligations (subject to ORS 294.035 (3)(b) and (3)(c))	See Section Error! Reference source not	Oregon: A- or equivalent or A-1 or equivalent
Per issuer	found.(Error! Reference source not found.)(Error! Reference source not	CA, WA, ID: AA- or equivalent or A-1 or equivalent
	found. above	

	Oregon Short Term Fund (subject to ORS 294.810)	As allowed under Oregon statutes	
--	---	-------------------------------------	--

Investments in bankers' acceptances, TCDs and other corporate indebtedness of any single company or qualified financial institution shall not, in the aggregate, exceed 5 percent of the portfolio.

If the portfolio falls outside of compliance with adopted guidelines of this Policy or is being managed inconsistently with this Policy, an Investment Officer shall bring the portfolio back into compliance in a prudent manner as soon as feasible. Due to fluctuations in the portfolio balance, maximum percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a point in time subsequent to the original purchase date. Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however, consideration should be given to this matter when future purchases are made to ensure that appropriate diversification is maintained.

If additional types of securities are considered for investment, in accordance with Oregon law they will not be eligible for investment until this Policy has been amended and the amended version adopted by the Port.

3. Credit Ratings

Investments must have a rating from at least one nationally-recognized statistical ratings organization and should be investment-level ratings and not issuer-level ratings (see ORS 294.035).

IX. INVESTMENT PARAMETERS

1. Diversification

It is the policy of the Port to diversify its investments. Where appropriate, investment exposure(s) will be limited by asset class; maturity; issuance, issuer, and security type. Allowed security types and investment exposure limitations are detailed in the table set forth above in Article Error! Reference source not found. Error! Reference source not found.

2. Liquidity

Liquidity risk is the risk that an investment may not be readily marketable or redeemable. In order to mitigate liquidity risk, the Port maintains funds in overnight investments or in investments maturing in less than 90 days to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements.

3. Investment Maturity

Investments will be timed to meet projected cash requirements unless a shorter maturity is appropriate. Funds may be invested to a maximum maturity of five years from the date of settlement. The weighted average maturity of the portfolio, including cash and investments, shall not exceed three years and the maximum maturity shall not exceed five years.

The only exceptions to the maximum maturity limitation shall be cases where the Port is using the security as collateral on an agreement or in instances where the Port is purchasing its own bonds in the marketplace to lower outstanding debt.

4. Settlement Restrictions

Pursuant to ORS 294.145, Investment Officers are prohibited from making a commitment to invest funds or sell securities more than 14 business days prior to the anticipated date of settlement of the purchase or sale transaction.

X. INVESTMENT OF PROCEEDS FROM DEBT ISSUANCE

The Port may invest bond proceeds in compliance with ORS 294.052, notwithstanding ORS 294.135 or 294.145 or any other law or charter provision. Bond proceeds shall be invested in accordance with the parameters of this Policy and the applicable bond covenants and tax laws. Investments of bond proceeds are typically not invested for resale and are maturity matched with outflows. Consequently, funds within the scope of ORS 294.052 are not subject to this Policy's maturity constraints as outlined in Article **Error! Reference source not found.** above.

XI. COMMISSION REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Quarterly, Port staff will provide the Commission with portfolio reports showing portfolio diversification, yield and benchmarking comparisons, maturity distribution, and investment allocation, or any other report or information as the Commission may request. The Commission has review authority over the investment program.

XII. POLICY REVIEW AND READOPTION

This Policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure its consistency with the objectives set forth in Article **Error! Reference source not found.** above, and its relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. This Policy shall be readopted annually by the Commission.

APPENDIX I

Definition of Investment Officers

"Investment Officer" The title of Investment Officer, and the associated responsibilities and activities described in this Policy, means the Port's Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Capital Finance & Debt Management, and the Debt, Cash, and Investment Program Manager.

"Credit risk" means the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of its value due to a real or perceived change in the Port's ability to repay its debt.

"Interest rate risk" means market value volatility due to the changes in the general level of interest rates over the life of the investment(s).